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'HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

 TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Trustees present their annual report togefher with the financial statements and auditors' report of the
charitable company for the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023. The annual report serves the purposes of
both a Trustees report and a directors' report and strategic report under company Iaw

Honeybourne Primary Academy provides education for pupils aged 5 to 11 years in the main school and
. operates a private nursery on site for children aged 2-4 years. There were 30 pupils registered in the Nursery

although by July 2023 this had increased to 48, and the main school had 178 pupils on roll as at 1st September
2022,

Structure, governance and management
Constitution
The Academy is a charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity.

The charitable company's memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing docurhent,of the
Academy.

The Trustees of Honeybourne First School Academy are also the dlrectors of the charitable company for the
purposes of company law.

The charitable company is known as Honeybourne Primary Academy, but still trades as Honeybourne First
School Academy, awaiting official name change documentation.

Details of the Trustees who served dur‘ing'the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in
the Reference and administrative details on page 1. .

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member. .

i

~ Trustees’ indemnities

Trustee liability is covered by the Government's Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA), which Honeybourne
Primary Academy subscribes to annqall'y.

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

Since the change to academy status, the Board of Trustees recruit and appoint new trustees to the Board.

Page 3



HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Structure, governance and managemenf (continued)

Policies adopted for the induction and training of Trustees
4 .

Service level agreements are in place to support-Finance, HR, Premises and Achievement. Services to support
the development of trustees are also purchased and training arranged as necessary to enable them to fulfil their
statutory functions. The Headteacher and existing trustees act as mentors for new trustees. In addition to the
statutory instrument and terms of reference, the following policies are in place to support trustees and they are
reviewed regularly with approval by the Board of Trustees:

'
- Articles of Association
) Trustee visits
.- Scheme of Delegation
- Finance Policy
- Pay Policy
- Performance Management Pollcy
- Expenses Policy
- Health and Safety
- Safeguarding Arrangements
- Recruitment and Training
- Whistle blowing
- The Curriculum
- SEND - Special Educational Needs and Disabilities
: Governors Code of Conduct
- Staff Code of Copduct

Organisational structure

The Trustees form the Governing Body who:acttogether to set the strategic direction of the school and carry out
monitoring duties to ensure the Academy fulfils its purpose and meets legislation in place.

The Board of Trustees is divided into sub-committees for Finance and Premises and Curriculum. The Board of
Trustees meets at least six times a year. Finance and Premises meet twice each term and Curriculum aim to
meet three times a year. A Pay Committee. meets twice a year. The school's Finance Secretary attends the
Finance and Premises committee meetings. .

The Headteacher is a member of the Trustees and reports regularly to the Finance and Premises and
Curriculum Committees and the Board of Trustees. The Trustees regularly carry out visits to school to monitor
school development.-

The Governing Body is made up of the following categories of appomtment
The Headteacher is a trustee as ‘Principal’, 2 Staff trustees 2 Parent trustees and 6 Co-opted. trustees.

The Board of Trustees has a Governance Professional to mlnute all meetlngs and provide professmnal advice
and support to the Board. .

r
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL A(fADEMY
. (A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Structure, governance and management (cdntinued)

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The pay and remuneration for key management personnel is set out in the pay policy for Honeybourne Primary
Academy. The Governing Body will review its pay policy each year in order to ensure that the policy continues to
comply with the law and promotes good personnel practice and in particular to take account of pay awards,
‘changes in national agreements governing pay, the. academy school's development plan and the academy
school's budget. .

Related parties and other'connected charities and organisations

' Honeybourne First School is a stand alone Academy and buys |nto

. Liberata (Payroll, HR, Health and Safety)

. Worcester Children First _

. School Business Systems — Finance and business support T
. Randall & Payne for Audit purposes and advice ‘

Honeybourne Primary Academy works closely with the local secondary school as well as the local cluster of First
Schools. Honeybourne Academy is actively exploring options to form or join a multi-academy trust in line with
governance expectations as detailed in the recent White Paper.

Trade union facility time

None of the Academy's employees were union officials in the period (2022: none). None of the pay bill was spent
on facility time (2022 none).

Objectives and activities
Objects and aims

The Academy provides education for pupils aged 5 to 11 Years in the main school and operates a private
Nursery on site for children aged 2-4 years.

Qur aims for all pupils are: :
. Try something new, have a go and take risks. Accept mistakes as a part of learning.

. Always give our best effort — be responsible for our own success.

o . Think about and use what we already know to improve success. .

. Be respectful, confident and trustworthy. Take advice so we know how to move on to achieve our
goals.

. ~ Enjoy our education by learning together, for life
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Objectives and activities (continued)
ijectives, strategies and activities

The main objectives for our pupils are:

Enable all pupils to achieve success and close the learning gap between the most and Ieast able.

. Give pupils rich experiences (provndlng a REAL purpose, develop life skills, give a context and link to
_ the wider world). .
. Build self-esteem .(give support to the vulnerable puptls value thelr opinions, support risk taklng and
" tying out new ideas).

. Provide opportunities for pupils to: speak out, develop and give opinions, gain confidence, take risks
and rehearse before being given ‘the stage’ (whether that be a spoken or written activity)

. ' Be honest with the children and their parents (and staff with each other) — let them know regularly what

~ they have done well, what they are good at and what they need to improve on.

. Personalise learning to -suit the children’s interests, backgrounds etc and therefore ensure they
develop a good attitude to learning, being able to make good choices.

) Having (and communicating) high expectations: model - investigations and enquiry skills in all subjects

(not just maths and science) and thinking out loud.

-

- The way the school achieved its objectlves was ‘set out in the strategy part of our annual School Development
Plan, agreed by the trustees. This includes our key priorities which were: :

Develop leadership at all levels focussed on school priorities

Develop and implement a new curriculum

Continue to improve outcomes in all key stages to ensure great teaching in all classrooms
Developing and implementing a robust professional development. offer for all staff
Implement evidence - informed interventions to meet the needs of all pupils

Improve attendance

Fully implement and establish the school's posmve relationships and behaviour strategy
To continue to explore opportunities for growth in response to the government white paper

Public benefit

The Trustees of the Academy have met regularly and scrutinised both the academic outcomes for the pupils and
management of staff performance. The Finance and Premises Committee has met regularly to ensure that the
‘governors are kept up to date with the financial situation and consider the budget, spending and development, in
- line with current legislation for spending of public funds and accountability to the Education and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA). The Curriculum Committee meets regularly to scrutinise the performance of the Academy in
terms of outcomes for pupils, performance of staff and data analysis. The Academy’s trustees have complied
with their duty to have due regard to the guidance on public benefit published by the Charity Commission in
exercising their powers or dutles .
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Strategié report
- Achievements and performance

Curriculum implementation . continued across the academic year. Faculty teams were established to lead
improvements in the wider curriculum offer, ensuring appropriate capacity and expertise is in place: There was a
focus on fully implementing the new mathematics approach and the new wider curriculum offer. Specific subjects
were identified for development — for example computing and DT — and the facuity teams monitored and °
evaluated the impact of actions taken. Leaders worked in collaboration with colleagues from a range of settings
to develop their own subject knowledge and ensure that the curriculum offer was robust and met the required
expectations. ' '

There has been a high focus on developing the quality of teaching provision and this has been actioned through
the establishment of an evidence informed pedagogical framework based on Evidence Based Education’s ‘Great
Teaching Toolkit'. This is securing a common language of pedagogy and of school improvement, enabling
leaders and practitioners to identify risks and opportunities for future development. Clear links are made with
staff appraisal and a professional development framework has bee implemented to provide staff with the support
and guidance needed to secure improvements. This is achieved through staff collaboration in commuinity
pedagogy sessions, through peer reflection and coaching.and mentoring provided by leaders. We have worked
with several organisations to develop these frameworks, contributing to system leadership and helping shape
and lead discussions about enhancing the pedagogical knowledge of teachers across settings. Careful
consideration of teacher workioad and wellbeing took place.

Funding pressures have provided additional challenge this academic year. Additional costs associated with
aspects such as catering and the uncertainity surrounding pay awards and industrial action resulted in leaders
needing to make difficult decisions regarding where to direct funds to maximise impact and ensure that school
improvement continued. We engaged with a School Resource Management Audit review and whilst the findings
were consistent with the data and information that leaders routinely shared, the recommendations will be used to
inform future decision making. S

Attendance data was in line with national data for primary schools and the actions taken by leaders to improve
persistant absence led to significant improvements. DfE guidance on improving attendance is used to inform
decision making and new systems and processes to track and manage attendance are now in place. Additional
support for pupils and families is in place where required. -

Annual safeguarding training was provided for all staff and governors at the start of the academic year and this
was followed up throughout the year at regular opportunities to share information and enhance understanding
and provision. The link governor for safeguarding has carried out several visits throughout the year, supporting
and challenging leaders to ensure that the school approach to safeguarding remained robust and compliant with
statutory duties. An external audit of safeguarding will be carried out in autumn 2023.

During this academic year, the school introduced workshops for parents to provide an opportunity for them to
work alongside their children and support learning in English and mathematics. The school received excellent
feedback from parents, with comments relating to the skills and knowledge of the staff as well as noting the
excellent progress children were making. A key part of the school's engagement with parents is via the website.
It recognised that improvements were needed and explored options to facilitate this.

Leadership succession planning was in place with senior leaders engaged with NPQEL (Executive Leadership),
NPQH (Headship) and NPQLT (Leading Teaching) programmes, ensuring that staff have the relevant skills and
experiences that will be needed to progress in their own development and move into new roles as required.
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
‘(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

- TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) ' )
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performarrce (continued)

Discussions continued around the school’s growth plans and the options that were available for us to explore. A
working party of governors was tasked with formulating a draft overview of what we needed to look for in a
partnership should we join an existing MAT. Collaboration continuesd to be a key aspect of our work. The peer
review process in partnership with Black Pear Trust schools provided external scrutiny and supported leaders to
evaluate the quality of education. The review took place in January and a report was shared with the Trustees.
This close collaboration led to the board making the decision to merge with Black Pear Trust (BPT). Much of the
spring term was focused on the due diligence process with BPT. Several meetings took place with leaders from
BPT that exploried our educational provision, financial position, staffing structure, estates and the strategic
priorities for school improvement. Several members of our senior leadership team were involved in these
meetings and this provided us with an opportunity to ask questions and explore BPT's systems, processes and
approaches. We also carried out our own due diligence focused on the quality of education at BPT. An external
expert was instructed to carry out due diligence on BPT's finances, governance, organisational structure, risk
management, vision and ethos and growth plans. Discussions continued between leaders from both
organisations as we explored the details of how the partnership would work once HPA formally joined BPT, with
the intention for the merger to take place on 1st September 2023. The process was delayed following a lack of
capacity in the Regional Director’s office to handle our application, with the merger now planned to take place on
1st December, following approval by the DfE. Consultation with parents will take place early in the next academic -
year.

The school’s internal audit focused on emergency and contmgency planning and |t now has robust policies and
procedures in place.

Proposed budgets for 23/24 were presented to the Finance and Premlses committee at the end of June and
feedback was provided during the’ meetmg

. PROGRESS OF KEY LEARNING PRIORITIES

Increase the number of pupils in-every year group that meet age related expectations (ARE) in English and
Mathematics and ensure that all pupils make at least expected progress from startrng points/end of previous key
stage, with an increased % of puprls making accelerated progress.

Cluster moderation of Y2 writing indicated that content of writing is strong and that a range of evidence is being

collected. Handwriting was an area indentified for further development.

. The new mathematics curriculum was launched and the deep dive in November confirmed that the
agreed approach was being used in all year groups. The use of worksheets has been significantly
reduced and this lead to greater evidence of children using jottings and tackling problem solving and
reasoning more frequently. Individual areas for development were discussed with staff, with support in -

«  place to secure improvements. We also reviewed our approach to mathematics in Early Years
Foundation Stage (EYFS) and leaders visited other settings to explore strategies that can inform our
decision making. Pupil voice shows that the new approach is helping them understanding the
sequence of learning and they can now talk with greater confidence about the strategies they use to
solve problems and support their learning.

o The new wider curriculum has been launched and we have much stronger evidence of attainment and
progress across subjects. This enables us to better evidence a broad and balanced curriculum offer.
Assessments are being carried out and after an initial review these are being further refined. Floor
books are being used well to gather evidence for a cohort in more practical subjects. In some subjects,
evidence gathering of individual progress is more difficult (PE and music particularly) and facuity teams
are exploring different approaches. We are implementing the Kapow computing curriculum and
documentation has been created to support this.
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

Classroom environments are improving and there is now greater consistency in learning walls across
school, supporting children to know and remember more. Additional adults are not always deployed to

. maximise impact and this will be a key focus for development. The use of manipulatives in
~ mathematics is developing and pupils talk about how these help them to tackle new learning.

The HPA Great Teaching Framework is developing at pace. Staff have now explored the four domains
and considered how these interlink. They have selected an element to focus on developing this year,
linked to performance management. Whole school professional development is also focused on
domains 1 and 4, particularly securing subject knowledge and the use of modelling and scaffolding in
class.

The new faculty approach is enabling leaders to work collaboratively and develop consistent
approaches across all subjects. This is helping those new to leadership, supporting them with
monitoring and evaluating provision. Pupil progress meetings have captured the impact of actions
taken this term to secure improved progress for pupils not on track.

Moderation with other settings has confirmed the accuracy of judgements made. HPA staff report that
compared to other school's books sampled, our writing is more secure at ARE+ and in mathematics
we have more evidence of problem solving and reasoning, an area that has been a focus for

~ development. For reading, staff reported that we have a broader range of evidence available but there:

is a need to include more comprehension evidence to better track pupil confidence in this outside of
testing.

~ The peer review in January 2023 conflrmed that the new approach to the teaching of writing is

becoming well established and that teachers are gaining confidence in each part of the process. Books
evidenced that taught content is being applied in independent writing. We are now developing the use
of end of unit expectations to provide greater clarity for teachers when they are planning essential unit
content and how to break this down into smaller chunks of learning.

Handwriting is improving across the school as evidenced in book looks at the academic year.

The mathematics deep dive in March 2023 confirmed that provision continues to strengthen and that
key approaches are becoming more established — retrieval, use of concrete resources in KS1 and an
appropriate balance of fluency, problem solving and reasoning. Challenge for the most able and
adapting the curriculum for pupils with SEND are key focus areas for further improvement. N

A review of provision in English to check the impact of actions taken since the peer review provided
strong evidence of the progress made. The books evidenced a more secure learning sequence is now
in place with greater evidence in most books for the rehearse stage of the writing sequence. This has
been secured through sharing expectations during a community pedagogy session, supported
planning, lesson coaching and moderation/book looks.

Our reading offer continues to strengthen. A review of books provided evidence that the agreed
sequence is in place and that children are now exploring the reading domains in all lessons. Evidence
of children exploring and securing vocabulary was strong.

The mathematics approach is now well established, with a final review taking place towards the end of
the summer term. This was focused on a review of evidence in books and confirmed that jottings were
now well used in most year groups, worksheets had been reduced and there was greater evidence of
problem solving and reasoning evident. This is belng reflected in |mproved outcomes for mathematics
in all year groups.
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 .

Strategie report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

Coaching sessions taking place in June evidenced that practitioners are securing a stronger
understanding of the Great Teaching Framework and that all teachers are actively engaged in action
research to develop an aspect of pedagogy in their own classrooms. Video evidence is now being
collected and we WI|| buud exempluf cation materials to support professional development, including self
study.
Faculty reviews show’ that there is greater consistency in the teaching of hlstory, geography, art, DT,
science and PE. Evidence in music, computing and RE is less secure. French is well evidenced in
some year groups. A deep dive of history and geography in June evidenced that the intent for these
subjects is being implemeneted and the strongest provision was where experienced staff have applied
knowledge .of the Great Teaching Framework across the curriculum. There is a need to strengthen
leadership for foundation subjects and this will be a key focus for 23/24. We will also be adopting BPT
curriculum plans for history, geography, art, DT and RE as these align well with our current offer and
will provide greater clarity for teachers when planning. We are working with BPT to develop a new
music curriculum. The BPT subject networks will provide additional support and guidance for teachers
and leaders.
EYFS prowsuon is a key focus for development. Monitoring has indicated that there is a need to revisit
“and revise the curriculum offer and we are working with BPT to adopt and adapt their planning
framework. We are also introducing a new lesson approach with a greater focus on structured
 independent learning. High expectatlons will ensure'that chlldren continue to make good progress and
are ready to access KS1. ‘

Interventlons are used effectlvely to address gaps in Iearnmg and secure accelerated progress from
mdlvndual starting points.

-

Limited tuition has taken place as a result of the limited availability of skilled tutors.

Interventions in KS1 and KS2 have been limited due to the lack of capacity caused by both limited
funding leading to a reduction in staff and the difficulties'we are facing with recruitment. Leaders have
adapted staff timetables to provide additional capacity for KS2.

-Initial monitoring and feedback from staff indicate that the Toe by Toe mterventlon is havmg a posntlve
impact in KS2, supporting children with gaps in phonics/reading.

Interventions in Y6, using the tuition funding, has secured improvements in progress-and attainment for
pupils across reading, writing and mathematics.

Attendance in line with nationall data for all pupil greups.

Attendance is in line with national data for primary schools. Weekly review meetings are now in place,
along with tracking documents to monitor persistent absence and to record the impact of actions taken.
Individual pupil attendance is shared with parents at the end of term, indicating where there is cause
for concern. Follow up meetings take place to explore support required.

Persistant absence continues to be reduced as a result of actions taken by leaders. As of 22nd May, .
persistent absences was 13% compared to 17.4% in state-funded primary schools.
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

’ Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and p_erforménce (continued)

Fully establish the school’s positive relationships and behaviour strategy.

The Golden Charter has been introduced and this is belng used to support conversations with children
following incidents of poor behaviour. A
Kapow PSHE (Personal, social, health and econémic Educatlon) has been introduced and this is
providing more consistent curriculum coverage. :

Personal Development and Behaviour form a key focus of performance management objectives, wnth
many members of staff havmg objectives aligned with domains 2 and 3 from the HPA Great Teachmg
Framework.

We have developed a tracklng approach for breaches of the behaviour policy. This enables Ieaders to
analyse data and identify common issues with particular behaviours, locations where breaches
commonly take place and to track the number of incidents involving individuals. This will strengthen our
ability to respond to concerns and putting support in place where it is required to secure improvements
required

Pupil voice regarding the Golden Charter provides evidence of how this is helping secure improved
behaviour. The introduction of the new reward system, linked to Class Dojo, is also referenced by
pupils as having a positive impact. Individuals with additional behaviour needs are well supported and
we can evidence the impact of actions taken to reduce incidents.

A new approach to class profiling and individual pupil profiles has been developed, linked to the Great
Teaching Framework. This is intended to ensure that support is aligned with agreed approaches and
strategies, whilst also developing a common language that will be shared with external agencies.

. Suspensions have reduced this year and we have worked in collaboration with a range of external

agencies to support children at risk of suspensmn or exclusion. This has secured further |mprovements
for individual pupils. - . N
Rights Respecting School Award (RRSA) has been paused as a result of the focus on other aspects of

" provision. Detailed launch plans have been prepared and this will be a key focus of the autumn.term in
~ 2023.

Lunchtime provision has been adapted to provide greater structure, with Play Leaders trained and
deployed. Pupil and staff voice evidence positive responses to the changes implemented.
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Key performance indicators

The budget was set in line with ESFA requirements.

The building continues to meet Health and Safety requirements through a regular maintenance
programme -and provides an environment conducive to good learning. We continue to refurbish and

upgrade the buildings to ensure they are fit for purpose.

. There was a small increase in pupil numbers from the previous year from 171 to 178 and by the end of

the year it was 184. The school has a capacity of 210.

Summary of outcomes by the end of 2023:

School 2023  National
2023

KS1 School 2023  National 2023
Phonics Y1
Phonics end of Y2

KS1 Reading Writing  Mathematics RWM Combined
School 2023 {GDS) 76% (317%) | 62% (3%) 76% (14%6) 59% (0%)
FENTLEIR Ik NIl 68% (19%) | 60% (8%) 70% (16%) 55%

KS2 Reading " Writi  Mathematics

School 69% (38%) 73% (35%%6)
Atitainment 2023 :

_ (GDS)

88% (27%)

69% (31%)

RWM
Combined
65% (23%)

National 73% (TBC) 71% (TBC) 73% (TBC) 72% (TBC) 59% (TBC)
Attainment 2023
(GDS)
School Progress 00 +14 +2.9
2023 f ]
Average Scaled 107 _ 107 105
 Scores 2023
National Average 105 104 105

Scaled Scores
2023
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 -

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy has
_adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason they continue
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further detalls regarding the adoption of
the going concern basis can be found in the accountlng policies.
\ .

On 1 December 2023, Honeybourne First School will transfer into The Black Pear Trust (UID: 4936). The trade
and assets of the school will transfer over as a going concern and the financial statements have been prepared
to reflect this. Honeybourne First School Academy (Company number: 08496781) will be dissolved in the 12
months following the signing of the financial statements.

Financial review

Almost all income for the Academy is obtained from the ESFA via grants based on the number of pupils
attending the school. A small amount of additional income is generated by parent contributions towards trips,
meals, uniform, music tuition and various fund raising activities. The Head Teacher prowdes school
improvement services and this generates a small amount of additional income.

Staff and salanes remain the largest percentage of the budget expendlture is in line with benchmarking activities
carried out. As a small school we continue to offer good value for money, given the pupil outcomes and the small
percentage left in the budget for educational supplles and activities.

The school engaged with SRMA. (School Resource and Management Audit) and Trustees will use the findings of
the report to inform decision making in 2023-2024.

The school has used Pupil Premium and Pupil Recovery funding to focus on improving the quality of education
through coaching and mentoring and developing the new curriculum. Funding has also been directed to
intervention and tuition leading to improved outcomes particularly in phonics and in KS2.

During 2023-2024 it is anticipated that we will:

- Implement a new EYFS and Foundation Stage Curriculum

- Develop leadership of Foundation subjects

- Develop practitioners knowledge of adopting the curriculum to meet the needs of all learners

- Improve attendance levels

- Continue to develop practitioners knowledge of ewdence informed strategies to improve teaching and learning.

Page 13



HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
* (A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Reserves policy

The purpose of the reserve policy for Honeybourne Primary Academy is to ensure the stability of the Academy’s
organisational operations, to protect it so that it has the ability to adjust quickly to financial circumstances, such
as large unbudgeted expenditure, cyclical maintenance and working capital.

Restricted Reserves: Restricted reserves are represented by the main income for the Academy which is General
Annual Grant (GAG), other grant.contributions or donations that are received for a specific project or purpose.
These funds are restricted for the use according to the funding agreements or donors instructions. There is a
percentage carry forward of GAG restricted funds which is calculated at the year end and can be used for future
years mainly for capital and a small percentage for operational purpose.

The review will encompass the ‘nature of the income and expenditure.streams, the need to match income with
commitments and the nature-of reserves. The level of reserves will be determined by governors annually and
can fluctuate dependmg on operational needs but the Governors have determined that the Academy should aim
to have a minimum of £70,000 held in reserves, although this is an ambitious target which has yet to be reached,
with a critical operating level of between £5,000 and £10,000. The reason for this is to provide sufficient working
capital to cover delays between spending and receipt of grants and to provide a cushion to deal with unexpected
emergencies such as urgent maintenance. All reserves are reported and reviewed regularly at management
meetings and expenditure from reserves approved by the Governors at the Finance and Premises Committee.

Unrestricted Funds: These:-are made up of the academy’s activities for generating funds, investment income and
other donations which are expendable at the discretion of the Governors in furtherance to achieve the objectives
of the Academy. The Academy is confident that it will meet the required pension contributions from its projected
income without significantly impacting on its planned level of charitable activity, it continues to calculate its ‘free’
or general unrestricted reserves without setting aside designated reserves to cover the pension liability. These
funds will be reviewed regularly by the Governors and finance committee and are obtained through one off
donations and are generally built up over time from fund generating activities and investments.

Designated Funds: These -are unrestricted funds that have been allocated by the Governors for a particulér
purpose. These funds are reviewed regularly and approved by the Governors and Finance and Premises
committee; they are obtained by designated funds from the unrestricted funds.

Use of reserves:

1. Identification of appropriate use of reserve funds: The Governors and staff W|l| identify the need for access to
reserve funds and confirm that the use is consistent with the purpose of the reserve as described in this policy.
This step requires analysis of the reason for any shortfall, the availability of any other sources of funds before
using reserves and evaluation of the time period that the funds will be required and replenished.

2. Authorisation of use of ‘reserves: Authorisation to use reserves of any kind will be made by the Chair of the
Finance and Premises Committee. At the next available meeting the approval should be noted in the minutes.
The authorisation will be reported to the full Governing Body at the next available meeting.

3. Reporting and monltorlng .The Governors are responsible for ensuring that the funds are maintainéd and used
only as described in this policy. Upon approval for the use of these funds, the Academy will maintain a record of
the use of the funds. The Finance and Premises Committee will regularly monitor the progress of the reserves.

Total reserves (excluding. pension reserve) at 31 August 2023 were £2,073,306 (2022: £2,141,344). This is
made up of £21,070 (2022: £14,274) of unrestricted funds, £2,954 (2022 £18,097) of restricted funds and
£2,049,282 (2022 £2,108,973) of restricted fixed asset funds.
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Co_mpany Limited by Guarantee)

Fa—

. TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) )
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

. Investment policy

Principal risks and uncertainties

Introduction: At Honeybourne Primary Academy, we ére careful with the public money we are entrusted

with. We carefully invest any money that is not required to cover antlmpated expendlture and take
steps to manage the risk associated with financial investments.

Objectives and targets: The purpose of-this policy is to ensure that any surplus funds are invested well
so that they achieve the best financial returns with the minimum risk. Good financial returns mean that
more money can be spent on educating pupils.

Action plan: Adequate cash balances must be maintained to ensure that there are always sufficient
funds in the school's current account to cover financial commitments such as payroll and day-to-day
expenses. If there is a surplus of funds after all financial commitments have been considered, this
surplus will be invested. Funds should be invested in tranches of up to '£10,000 and after agreement
from the finance committee. It may be beneficial to invest each tranche with a different financial
institution. Funds, and any interest they earn, will be automatically reinvested, unless they are required
for immediate or anticipated expenditure.

Reviewing: The Headteacher and Finance and Premises commvttee will carry out a review of this policy

~ on a regular basis to'ensure that any new or changed legislation is adhered to.

J

The risks are set out in the School Risk Register. Primary risks are:

As a single academy trust with limited reserves it is important that we contmue to work towards Jomlng
a strong family of schools

Impact of the current financial uncertainty relating to cost of living increases such as catering and
unfunded pay awards

The number on roll determines the budget therefore the Governors mitigate the risk by mamtalnmg an
up to date knowledge of future numbers.

The age of the building is also a continuing consideration when setting the budget. Sufficient funds are
made available to ensure the building and services remain in a good condition.

There is a potential for a significant building programme in the village. The governors will mamtam an
awareness of how this will impact on pupil numbers and are planning how an increased population will
be accommodated in school. ' '

Fundraising

Friends of Honeybourne School lead fundraising activities for the school, hosting events such as Summer and
Christmas Fairs, discos and cake sales. Fundraising updates are provided to governors in the HT report in all
FGB meetings. This enables governors to monitor fundraising and ensure that it is conducted appropriately and
that funds raised are used appropriately. ’
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‘ - HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
' (A Company Limited by Guarantee)

: TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
’ FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Plans for future pariods

The key plans for future periods are:

. To continue to address the two key i Issues identified for improvement in the Ofsted report from January
2020

. To monitor the new building and surrounds to ensure that it meets the requirements of the school and
the pupils.

. To successfully j join the multi-academy trust

. To monitor the schodls new curriculum to ensure it meets the needs of all pupils

. To ensure that-all’ staff receive professional development to improve the quality of education

o To review different ways to develop and enhance links to the.community and families

. Identify opportumtles for staff to develop their skills and knowledge through achieving external
qualifications

. 'Develop and extend pupil leadership

. * To continue to support the well-being of all staff

Funds held as custodian on behalf of others ‘ N

The funds available to the school from the ESFA and through fund raising are managed through the public bank
account and are therefore subject to a full audit.

The school admrnrstersta small, separate fund set up to reward achievement in the Arts. Each year trophies are
awarded for outstanding participation and achievement across the curriculum.

: (
Disclosure of information to auditors
Insofar as the Trustees are aware:
. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware, and
. that Trustees have.taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any.
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.
. Randall and Payne'have‘ been re-appointed as the Auditor for Honeybourne Primary Academy

The Trustees' Report mcorporatlng a strateglc report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
company directors, and srgned on |ts behalf by:

Ste| Phen Coleman (Nov 27, 2023 12:22 GMT) S(e\.; h.s..srun {Nov 23, 2023 18:03 GMT}

Mr S Coleman . Mr S Martin
~ Chair of Trustees - to 11 October 2023 Chair of Trustees - from-11 October 2023
Date: Nov 27,2023 Date: Nov 23,2023

Domtinic Davis
Dominic Davis [Nov 23, 2023 18:07 GMT}

D Davies
Accounting Officer

Date; Nov 23,2023
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" HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT . N

Scope of résponsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Honeybourne First School
Academy has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Headteacher, as accounting officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and
in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between
Honeybourne First School Academy and the Secretary of State for. Education. They are also responsible for

reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.
. ' ' o f
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

.GOVERNAN‘CE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)-

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 15 times during the year. The
Board of Trustees aims to meet at least 6 times a year. When meetings have not taken place, email
communication as well as telephone calls are used to inform all governors and ensure that key actions are
agreed by the whole governing body.

Attendance during the yeér at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee R ' ‘ Meetings attended | Out of a possible

Mr S Coleman, Chair 6 6 -
Mr D Davies, Head Teacher 6 6
Mrs A innes 3 6"
Mrs L Bucknall ) 6 6
Mr S Martin, Vice Chair 6 -6
Mr S Bullen 2 5
Mrs R Evans-Cook . 5 6
Mrs S Perkins 4 6
Mrs S Henson 6 6
Mrs J Jones 4 6
Mr K Thorpe 5 6

There has been several changes in membership of the governing body. New replacéments have been found but
there is always a lead in period as new governors become more familiar with their roles ‘and responsibilities.

{ _ A
The Finance and premises Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to:

Policies and planning

. Review and monitor a Finance Policy which includes a. scheme of delegation for spending and -
budgetary adjustments for the committee, headteacher and other nominated staff. :
* Review, monitor and approve all delegated statutory fmancual policies, including a Charging and

Remissions and Governor Allowances Policy.

Review the Pay Policy and ensure the appropriate statutory approval is obtained

Establish and maintain a three-year financial plan and a yearly plan, within the constraints of avallable
information, to enable school activities and objectives to be met, taking into the account priorities of the
SDP, number on roll projection and external factors.

L Ensure that sufficient funds are set aside for pay lncrements as set out in the Pay Policy and as
recommended by the headteacher. .

. Monitor and review a Busmess Continuity Plan.

Pay . '

. Ensure that all pay determinations act in accordance with the school's pay policies and procedures
including adherence to any timings of pay determinations.

. . Ensure any statutory requirements are followed. Headteacher acts in an advisory capacity during this

part of the meeting and doesn't have a vote on any pay determinations; no other staff members are
allowed during this section. :
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued).

Risk and Audit
. Review the school's Risk Register at least annually and ensure the FGB are made aware of potential
financial impact of identified risks.
. - Receive and act upon any issues identified by a financial” audit Ensure that the audit contract is
- reviewed every five years. -
Health and Safety (H&S) '
. Take responsibility for the overS|ght of H&S and review the output from H&S audlts and ensure

appropriate action is taken.
Financial monitoring and reporting
‘e Monitor and benchmark the income and expenditure throughout the: year of all funds agalnst the
annual budget plan, and ensure all money is well spent.

. Receive monthly budget monitoring reports and ensure FGB receive six times per year.

. Ensure proper allocation of Pupil Premium, PE and other ‘ring-fenced’ funding.

) Report back at each meeting of the FGB and alert them of potential problems.

. Subject to the scheme of delegation, approve any budgetary adjustments that will from tnme to time be -

_ necessary in response to the evolving requirements of the school.

o Ensure the School Resource Management self-assessment checklist is accurate and submltted within
the deadline. '

. Ensure the Annual report and accounts are accurate and submitted within the deadline.

° Comply with other statutory monitoring and reporting requirements.

Premises i . : 4 .

. Provide support and guidance for the FGB and the headteacher on all matters relating to the
maintenance and development of the premises, grounds, security and environment.

. Ensure an annual inspection takes place and a report is received identifying any issues.

. - Create a project committee where necessary to oversee any major developments.

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustee - Meetings attended Out of a possible
Mr S Martin 6 6
Mr D Davis 6 6
Mr S Coleman 6 6
Mr K Thorpe 6 6
Ms S Henson 1 5

' Page 19



HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee) <

"GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

The Curriculum Committee is also a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to:

Data

"Manage statutory polices in accordance with its delegated powers. These will be agreed via the FuII

Governing Board (FGB) on an annual basis

Review and provide advice on relevant non-statutory policies identified within the school's pollcy

review programme ' , :

Ensure appropriate Governor monitoring visits occur :

Monitor and evaluate rates of progress and standards of achievement by pupils, including any
underachieving and overachieving groups

Set priorities for improvement, and monitor and evaluate the impact of |mprovement plans

which relate to the committee’s area of operation.

Monitor and evaluate provision for all groups of vulnerable children, such as Looked After Children
(LAC) and Previously LAC and ensure all their needs have been identified and addressed, and to
evaluate their progress and-achievement.

Ensure that the requirements of children with Special Educational Needs and Disability (SENd) are
met, and receive termly reports from the Headteacher/Special Educational Needs Co-ordinator
Consider recommendations from external reviews of the school (e.g. Ofsted, School Improvement
Advisers, or other relevant professionals commissioned by the school), agree actions as a result and
evaluate regularly the implementation of any resuiting plan ’

Ensure that all children have equal opportunities. :

Advise the Finance & Premises Committee on the relative funding priorities necessary to deliver the
curriculum.

Monitor the school’s publicity, public presentation and relationships with the wider community.

Ensure the curriculum takes account of pupils ‘Spiritual, moral, social and cultural' (SMSC) needs and
adheres to the promotion of British values.

Effectively utilise -other sources of information and gwdance available, for example school council
output, to inform the workings of the committee.

With regards to data, the committee will specifically ensure that

They understand the limitations and benefits of all existing sources of data
New sources of data are assessed and utilised appropriately

- Data is monitored for attainment and progress

Quality of Education
The committee will review, monitor and evaluate the curriculum offer to ensure:

The school’s values underpin curriculum intent, implementation and impact

The curriculum meets the school’s statutory responsibilities. N

Senior leaders have used research and good practice examples to influence the development of the
curriculum. :
Senior and middle leaders momtor the nmplementatlon and impact of the curriculum.

The curriculum is differentiated to-ensure it is inclusive and accessible to all pupils.

The curriculum is designed-to be broad and balanced — focussing on both core subjects and creative
opportunities.

There is a focus on the learning journey as well as stages of educatlon

Effective processes are in place for engagement with parents/carers regarding the quality of education

.
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY,
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

' GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

Between curriculum meetings trustees normally undertake formal visits to the school usually with a specific focus
linked to the School Development Plan. :

Attendance ddring the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustee - Meetings attended Out of a possible

Mrs L Bucknall 3
Mr D Davis

Mrs A Innes

‘Mr S Bullen

Mrs R Evans-Cook
Ms J Jones

~

_,WNWWW
WWWwWwww

Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to educational and
wider societal outcomes, as well as estates safety and management, achieved in return for the taxpayer
resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the Academy’s use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data where appropnate The accounting officer for the Academy has
delivered improved value for money during the year by:

e Obtaining quotes: for large orders and not relying on a sole provider

. Developing a business-relationship with providers, local school and academies to ensure that, where
possible, economies of scale can be appreciated

. Holding staff to account for their performances and linking this to the pay structure

. Reviewing how the intervention programme in school works so that pupll outcomes can be more

directly linked to expenditure, i.e. with teaching assistants

s

In addition: ‘ ' c ‘ ,

All SLAs have been reviewed and those that were not providing value for money have been terminated or notice
of termination given. Our HR and payroll provider was changed following significant concerns about the service
being provided. This service is now much improved. We have been working with Black Pear Trust to review IT
and our estates and this has enabled us to accurately prioritise funding. Additional funding was used to improve
fire prevention systems. The internal audit process also focused on disaster recovery, risk assessment and
business continuity, leading to improvements with these aspects of provision.
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‘HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

_ The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy policies, aims and. objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system .of internal control has been in place in Honeybourne First School Academy for the
"~ " year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial
- statements. _

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is
of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy's
significant risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of
Trustees.

.’ The Principal provides leadership on the risk management process
o, . Staff are trained or equipped to manage risk in a way appropriate to their authority and duties.

. . Guidance is taken from reguilar visits from a leading financial advisor, from School Business Systems.
The risk and control framework '

The Academy’s system of.internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information
and administrative procedures including the segregatlon of duties and a system of delegation and accountability.
In particular, it includes:

. The accounts are audited by Randall & Payne, accountants which includes regular visits and
telephone support for further advice. The scheme of delegation is followed rigidly and any items
identified in any audit preparatlon are dealt with immediately and reported to the finance

committee. :
e  comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
' which are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees
. regular reviews by the finance and premises committee of reports which indicate financial performance

against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expendlture programmes
setting targets to measure financial and other performance

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

delegation of authority and segregation of duties

identification and management of risks

The Board of Trustees has decided not to appoint an internal auditor. However, the Trustees have engaged the
services of a business support company, School Business Services (SBS) which specialises in.schools finance.

This role includes giving advice on ﬁn'ancial matters and performing a range of checks on the academy trust's
financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

testing of payroll systems

testing of purchase systems and invoice processing

testing of control account/ bank reconciliations

the reviewer reports monthly to the board of trustees, through the finance and premlses committee on
the operation of the systems of.internal control and on the discharge of the statutory requirements.
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE .STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The risk and control framework (continued)

In addition specific internal inspeétions are carried out every'year on a ‘rangé of activities, commissioned by the
trustees, through the Finance and premises committee, in line with the guidelines provided by the ESFA and
DfE.

This year that inspection was carried out by LOC Solutions and included a full examination of our Business
Continuity and Disaster Recovery planning. ' :

Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal .
control. Durlng the year in question the review has been informed by:

. the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

. the work of the executive managers within the Academy who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework. .

° the work of the business support company, School Business Services (SBS);

. advice from our independent financial advisor, through School Business Systems representative

The accounting officer has been advisecj of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system
is in place. ‘

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on their behalf by:’ '

Stev® MGrun (Nov 23, 2023 18:03 GMT)

Stephen Coleman {Nov 27, 2023 12:22 GMT)

Mr S Coleman Mr S Martin
Chair of Trustees - to 11 October 2023 Chair of Trustees - from 11 October 2023
Date: Nov 27,2023 | Date: Nov 23,2023

Dominic Davis

R GHEFOT PRI RERUAT N | S
D Davies
Accounting Officer

Date: Nov 23, 2023
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of Honeybourne First School Academy | have considered my responsibility to notify the -
Academy Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of ali- funding; including for estates safety and
management, under the funding agreement between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education.
As part of my consideration |.have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2022,
including responsibilities for estates safety and management.

I confirm that | and the Academy Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of
all funds by the Academy, or-material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
Academy's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2022. :

| confirm that no mstances of material irregularity, |mpropr|ety or fundmg non-comphance have been discovered
. to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA.

Domtinic CDaw'J

Dominic Davis {Nov 23, 2023 18:07 GMT)

Mr D Davies
Accounting Officer

Date: Nov 23, 2023
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations. -

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law,
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless. they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In prepanng these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
" observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction

2022 to 2023;
make judgements and accounting estlmates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless |t is mappropnate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
. the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. : ’

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and.operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from Ieglslatlon in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:

Clodaa : . ’ 67; .
Stephen Coleman (Nov 27, 2023 12: ZGMI’) Stev¥ MErtin (Nov 23, 2023 18:03'GMT)

Mr S Coleman Mr S Martin
Chair of Trustees - te 11 October 2023 . _ _ Chair of Trustees - from 11 October 2023
Date:, Nov 27, 2023 ' Date: Nov 23,2023
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCH(.)OL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF .
HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY

" Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Honeybourne First School Academy (the 'academy') for the year
ended 31 August 2023 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement
of Cash Flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting pohmes The financial

- reporting framework that has.been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard
102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland', the Charities SORP 2019
and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy's affairs as at 31 August 2023 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountmg
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of theJCompames Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 |ssued by the Educatlon and Skills Funding
Agency .

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit

- of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including
the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. .

Conclusions relating to going concern |

. In auditing the financial statements we have concluded. that the Trustees use of the gomg concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are aqthonsed for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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' HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY (CONTINUED)

Other i'nformation

The other information. comprises the information included in the Annual Report other than the financial
statements and our Auditors' Report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained
within the Annual Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the -
financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
. Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

\
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

.. the information given in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Trustees' Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

- requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy and its environment obtéined in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report.

.We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: :

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
o the financial statements are not in agreement with.the accounting records and returns; or
. certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
\
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY (CONTINUED) .

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, ‘whether
due to fraud or error. .

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy or to cease operatlons
or have no realistic alternative but to do so. .

‘ Alidito'rs'.responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of |rregularities
including fraud. The extent to whlch our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below:

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Academy.

" These include but are not limited to compliance with the Companies Act 2006, Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 |ssued by
. the Education and Skills Funding Agency; {

- we agreed the financial statement disclosures to supportmg documentation;

- we made enquiries of management; and

- we reviewed board minutes throughout the year.

A further descriptidn of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This descnptlon forms part of our
- Auditors' Report . .
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. "HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF

HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY (CONTINUED)

. Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the

"~ Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy's members

those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' Report and for no other purpose: To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy and its

members, as a'body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. -

Benjamin Burch ACA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of

Randall & Payne LLP : .
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors
Shurdington Road -

Cheltenham

. Gloucestershire
GL51 4GA

Date: Nov 27,2023
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SC\HOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee).

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO
HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY
a . \ o

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 12 February 2019 and further to the requirements
of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts. Direction 2022 to
2023, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by Honeybourne First School Academy during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August
2023 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parllament and the financial transactions conform to the
authorities which govern them. :

This report is made solely.to Honeybourne First School Academy and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Honeybourne First School Academy -
and ESFA those matters: we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do-not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Honeybourne First School

_ Academy and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed. )

Respective responsibilities of Honeybourne First School Academy's accountlng offlcer and the
reporting accountant : :

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Honeybourne First School Academy's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 19 December 2012 and the Academy Trust
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is .
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the ‘United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during. the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for- External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant.of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to. provide us with sufficient appropnate ev:dence to express a negative conclusion on
regularlty

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
~ might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regulanty and propriety of the
Academy's income and expend|ture

- We review consistency with value for money principles in the period;
. - We assess compliance with relevant laws and regulation; \
- We assess the safeguarding of public funds and assets. -
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO
HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY
: (CONTINUED)

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our éttention which suggest in al'l material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which

govern them.

R‘a'ndall & Payne LLP

Reporting Accountant
Randall & Payne LLP

CHartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors

Date: Nov 27,2023
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Restricted : -
. Unrestricted Restricted - fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
. 2023 = . 2023 2023 2023 2022
Note £ ~ £ £ £ £
Income from:
Donations and capital - A ' ‘ :
grants 2300 10,576 - 19,234 29,810 7,386
Other trading activities - « 86,128 - - 86,128 67,554
Investments . 6 4 2 - ‘ - 2 12
Charitable activites . =+ - 1,119,899 - 1,119,899 1,060,295
. Total income o 10,578 . 1,206,027 19,234 ° 1,235839.  1,135247 -
Expenditure on: o S
Raising funds o ‘ - © 158,713 ’ - 158,713 131,615
Charitable activities 8 - 1,076,239 78,924 - 1,155,163 1,181,297
Total expenditure . i - 1,234,952 78,924 1,313,876 1,312,912
Net ) B : A
income/(expenditure) 10,578 {28,925) (59,690) (78,037) (177,665)
Transfers between o A : 4 :
funds 17 (3,782) 3,782 - - -
'Net movement in '
funds before other
recognised : . -
gains/(losses) . ' 6,796 (25,143) (59,690) (78,037) (177,665)
* Other recognised - '
gains/(losses): '
Actuarial gains on
defined benefit pension : : :
schemes 23 . - 147,000 - 147,000 - 659,000
Net movement in ' .
funds 6,796 - 121,857 (59,690) 68,963 481,335
Reconciliation of
funds:
Total funds brought . ' C :
forward : 14,274 (166,903) 2,108,972 1,956,343 1,475,008
Net movement in funds . - 6,796 121,857 (59,690) 68,963 481,335
Total funds carried — : ‘ '
forward 21,070 (45,046) 2,049,282 2,025,306 - 1,956,343

~

" Page 32



HONEYBOURNE FI,RST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
‘ (CONTINUED) : )
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 .

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 37 to 61 form part of these financial statements.
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 08496781

3

. BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

FiXed assets

Tangible assets

Current assets '

Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year ' '

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

- Net assets excluding pension liability

Defined benefit pension scheme liability
Total net assets

Funds of the'Academy
_Restricted funds:

Fixed asset funds
Restricted income funds

Restricted funds excluding pension asset

Pension reserve -

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted income funds .

Total funds

Note

14

16

16

23

17
17

17

17
17

2023
£
2,044,663
2,044,663
24,560
63,202
87,762
(59,119)
28,643
2,073,306
2,073,306
(48,000)
2,025,308
2,049,282
2,954
2,052,236
(48,000)
2,004,236
21,070

2,025,306

2022
£,
2,091,177
2,091,177
64,467
68,156
132,623
(82,457)
50,166
2141,343
2,141,343
(185,000)
1,956,343
2,108,972
18,097
2,127,069
(185,000)
1,942,069
14,274

1,956,343

Page 34



HONEYBOURNE FIRST. SCHOOL ACADEMY

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 08496781

'BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to entities subject to
the small companies regime. :

The financial statements on pages 32 to 61 were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustees and are
signed on their behalf, by:

r \.cda.a ' : -
Stephen Coleman {Nov 27, 2023 12:22 GMT) L S_te%t_l'nmov 23,2023 18:03 GMT)
Mr S Coleman . Mr S Martin
Chair of Trustees - to 11 October 2023 Chair of Trustees - from 11 October 2023
Date: Nov 27,2023 . _ Date: Nov 23, 2023

Domtinic Davis

Dominic Davis (Nov 23, 2023 18:07 GMT)

D Davies
Accounting Officer

Date: Nov 23, 2023

The notes on pages 37 to 61 form part of these financial statements.
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

st

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

2023 2022
Note £ £
Cash flows from operating activities ‘

- Net cash provided by o’berating activitieﬂs‘ _ » 19 46,691 241,188
Cash flows frorfl inve;.;ting activjties L a , 20 | (51 ,645) (214,607) -
‘Ch.ange in cash and éa_sthr.eqﬁivalénts in the year - o (4,954) | 26,58%
Cash and <:-a$h equivahl‘en.ts: ét t_hé pégi-nni.hg of the year oo 68,156 4 1{ 575
'Cash and gash equivalént’s‘at the énd of the year | 21, 22 63,202 68,156
The notés on pages 37 to 61 fvo‘f.m‘part_ of these ﬁnanciai statements C / )
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. HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
¥ ~ . (A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1.

Accounting policies

11

1.2

~

A.summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied cohsistehtly,
except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below. -

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statéments of the Academy, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been- -
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard

Applicable in the UK -and Republic of Ireland (FRS. 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: .

Statement of Recommended. Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance -
with the Financial Reporting ‘Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) .
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)),"the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA, the ;
Chantles Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any -
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of

" the Academy to continue as'a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a

1.3

period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and.

.have concluded that the Academy has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for

the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy's ability to continue
as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing
the financial statements.

On 1 December 2023, Honeybourne First School will transfer into The Black Pear Trust (UID: 4936).
The trade and assets of the school will transfer over as a going concern and the financial statements
have been prepared to reflect this. Honeybourne First School Academy (Company number:
08496781) will be dissolved in the 12 months following the signing of the financial statements.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably. :

Legacies -
The recognition of income from legacies is dependent on establishing entitlement, the probability of -
receipt and the-ability to estimate with sufficient accuracy the amount receivable. Evidence of -
entitlement to a legacy exists when the Academy has sufficient evidence that a gift has been left to
them (through knowledge of the existence of a valid will and the death of the benefactor) and the
executor is satisfied that the property in question will not be required to satisfy claims in the estate.
Receipt of a legacy must be recognised when it is probable that it will be received and the fair value
of the amount receivable, which will generally be the expected cash amount to be dlstnbuted to the
Academy, can be reliably measured. .

‘Donations

Donations are recognised on -a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related condltlons)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured. :
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

~

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1, Accounting policies (continued)

14

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settiement and
the amount of the obligation.can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly -
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are -
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation

charges aIIocated on the portion of the asset's use.

1.5

1.6

Expenditure on raising funds :
This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy to raise funds for its charitable purposes and

- includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs-incurred on the Academy's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Academy apportioned to charitable activities.

Al resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Government grants

Government .grants relating to tangible fixed assets are treated as deferred income and released to
the Statement of Financial Activities over the expected useful lives of the assets concerned. Other .
grants are credited to the Statement of Financial Activities as the related expenditure is incurred.

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £500 or more are capitalised as tanglble fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any prowsmn for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the

government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance. Sheet at cost and

depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to -
the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted

fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet.

Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the

Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted

funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund. ,

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight- -line basis over its
expected useful life, as follows:
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‘HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1. Accounting policies {continued)

1.6 Tangible fixed assets (continued)

1.7

1.8

1.9

Depreciétion is provided.on the following bases:

Long-term leasehold property =~ - 30 years straight line
Furniture-and equipment - 5 years straight line
Computer equipment - 3 years straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying

- value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. lmpatrment

losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.
Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Cash af bank and in hand ' )

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash andb short-term highly liquid investments with aA short maturity

of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

Liabilities -

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance Sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide.

1.10 Financial instruments

The Academy only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102, The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the Academy and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments.and are debt instruments
measured.at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 16. Taxation and social security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred  income is not deemed to be a financial
liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services .
rather than cash or another financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

N

1. Accounting policies (continued)

.

1.11 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Acaderny are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is-.an unfunded. scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over-employees’ working lives with the Academy in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially: leVel  percentage of current-and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined ‘by the Government:Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method.: TPSis an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequéntly, the TPS. is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a‘funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities. are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance Sheet date The amounts charged to operating surplus are the’
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognlsed gains and losses..

b

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognlsed gains and losses.
1.12 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources WhICh may be used towards meetlng any of the
charitable objects of the Academy at the discretion of the Trustees. :

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose :

Restricted general funds comprlse all other restricted funds received with restrictions |mposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, galns and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.

Page 40



. HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. ’ :

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. : :

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 23, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2023. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Income from donations and cépital grants

Restricted -
Unrestricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ - £
Donations 10,576 . 10576 1,530
Capital Grants o - . 19,234 19,234 5,856

10,576 19,234 29,810 7,386

Total 2022 _ 1,530 5,856 7,386
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guara_ntee)_

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 .

Funding for the Academy's charitable activities

Restricted Total Total .

funds funds funds
2023 2023 . 2022
: £ £ £
Educational Operations Direct :
DfE/ESFA grants : . o .
General Annual Grant . : 761,018 761,018 " 726,468
Other DfE/ESFA grants ' . _
Pupil Premium ) g 48,172 48,172 43,741
Universal Infant Free School Meals (UiFSM) : 29,993 29,993 . 29,935
Other DfE and ESFA ' ‘ ‘ 39,939 39,939 45,095
Supplementary Grant ' : 22,392 22,392 -
. 901,514 901,514 845,239
Other Government grants ' :
Local Authority - Special Educational Needs (SEN) 64,146 ' 64,146 62,362
Local Authority - Early Years ' 124,121 124,121 126,752
Other Local Authority Revenue Grants ' 30,118 - 30,118 25,942
218,385 . © 218,385 215,056

1,119,899 1,119,899 1,060,295

1,119,899 1,119,899 1,060,295

Total 2022 | A ' ‘» : 1,060,295 - 1,060,295

Included within Other DfE and ESFA is £4,350 (2022: £6,381) of recovery funding and £2,646 (2022: -
£1,443) of tutoring funding.

-~
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HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Income from other trading activities

Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds

- 2023 2023 2022

£ i - £

Cateringincome - ... - } © 10,800 . 10,900 11,027

Parental contributions. - o ; 30,572 30,572 29,281

Other income  ~ o '_ - . 24,868 - 24,868 8,364

Pupil trips - A 19,392 19,392 - 16,322

Training income 396 396 2,560

Total 2023 - o . ' 86,128 86,128 67,554
Total 2022 - | - 67,554 67,554

Investment income

Unrestricted " Total - ' Total

funds funds funds

2023 2023 2022

£ - £ £

Investment income ' ‘ 2 ,l 2 12

3 . .

Total 2022 ‘ , 12 12

Page 43



HONEYBOURNE FIRST SCHOOL ACADEMY
_ (A Company Limited by Guarantee)

'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Expenditure

Expenditure on fundraising.
trading activities:

Direct éo‘sts

Educational Operations' Direct:

Direct costs .
Allocated support costs -

Total 2023

Total 2022

Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities

Summary by fund type

. Educational Operations Direct

Total 2022

Totai .

Total

Staff Costs Premises Other
- 2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ £ £
137,466. - 21,247 - 158,713 131,615
751,346 ‘ 3,591 A 68,705 823,642 787,773
90,382 111,385 129,755 331,522 393,524
979,194 114,976 219,707 1,313,877 1,312,912
1,008,315 9214 295,383 1,312,912
Unrestricted  Restricted - _
funds funds Total Total
2023 2023 2023 2022.
£ £ £ £
- 1,155,163 - 1,155,163 1,181,297
1

" 1,181,296

1,181,297
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(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Analysis of expenditure by activifies

Activities ,
undertaken Support Total Total
directly costs funds - funds
2023 2023 2023 2022 -
£ £ £ . £
Educational Operat'ib'ns?Direct SR 823,642 331,522 1,155,164 - 1,181,297
Total 2022 787,773 393,524 1,181,297
Analysis of direct costs
Educational . ,
Operations Total Total
Direct funds funds
2023 "2023 2022

£ £ £
Pension finance costs 6,000 6,000 -
Staff costs - 751,346 751,346 724,569
Staff Expenses 3,868 3,868 4,240
Educational Supplies . - = 13,888 13,888 9,207
Educational Consultancy 1,905 1,905 200
Insurance . S 6,829 6,829 13,689

. Technology Costs ‘i ... 10,389 10,389 12,236

Other ' 29,417 29,417 23632
Total 2023 Ll 823,642 823,642 787,773
Total 2022 787,773 787,773
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10.

Analysis of expenditure by activities (confinued)

Analysis of support costs

- other services

Educational .
, Operations - Total Total *
Direct funds funds -
' 2023 2023 2022
. : A £ £ £
Pension finance costs ' - - 11,000
Staff costs ‘ 90,382 90,382 161,717
Depreciation - B 78,924 78,924 75,943
Educational Consultancy ‘ : ' - - 1
Technology Costs ‘ , 892 . 892 382
Other ‘ . ' (' ‘ ~ 72,920 72,920 76,532
Maintenance of Premises ' 2,704 2,704 - 242
Cleaning and Caretaking : , . 2,449 2,449 1,868
‘Rates - ‘ 3,949 . 3,949 4,740
Energy . 11,359 11,359 8,341
Catering -~ ‘ ‘43,615 43,615 33,861
Other Premises Costs - ‘ - 14,198 14,198 8,972
Legal & Professional - o 3,490 3,490 3,480
Auditor Costs : 6,640 6,640 6,445
Total 2023 ' o 331,522 331,522 393,524
Total 2022 - 393,524 393,524
Net income/(expenditure)
‘Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:
2023 2022
. £
Operating lease rentals 2,145 2,145
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets- . 77,799 70,601 .
Fees paid to auditors for: . :
- audit 6,640 6,445
3,490 3,480
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1.

Staff

- a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

2023 2022
£ £
Wages and salarie§:- 750,041 719,600
Social security costs? DEE . 60,715 58,412
Pension costs LB © 160,337 226,714
. 971,093 1,004,726
Agency staff costs = - ’ 8,101 3,589
: 979,194 1,008,315
b. Staff numbers
The average number.of persons employed by the Academy during the year was as follows:
2023 2022
No. No.
Teaching staff T S o ' : 10 10
Administration & Support. - ‘ 22 22
Management . . : 4 4
36 36
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11.

12.

13.

- Staff (continued)

c. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose .employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was: ‘

2023 2022

R ) . C o No. . No.

In thé band £60,001 - £70,000 , - _ . - 1
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 ' 1 -

b -

d. Key'management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy comprise the Trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of key management personnel benefits (including employer
pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management
personnel for their services to the Academy was £214,348 (2022 £197,258 ).

/

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Academy. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services
they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.
The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2023 2022

: . ' 4 £ £

D Davies , Head Teacher Remuneration , 70,000 - 65,000 -
‘ . ) 75,000 70,000
Pension contributions paid 15,000 - 15,000 -

T ! . : . 20,000 . 20,000
Mrs R Evans-Cook : ) * Remuneration 45,000 - 40,000 -
. : 50,000 45,000

Pension contributions paid 10,000 - 10,000 -

15,000 - 15,000

During the year ended 31 August 2023, expenses totalling £1,105 were reimbursed or paid directly to 2
Trustees (2022 - £349 to 2 Trustees). The expenses paid were reimbursements for meetings, CPD and

other school related business.

Trustees' and Officers’ insurance ‘
The Academy has opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. it is not possible to quantify the Trustees and
officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.
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14.

15.

~ Additions A

At 31 August 2023

Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2022; 7

Depreciation
At 1 September 2022 .- i -
Charge for the year * “..:

At 31 August 2023 =+

Net book value

At 31 August 2023 -~ -

At 31 August 2022 -

Long-term - | Furniture _

leasehold and Computer
property equipment = equipment Total
. £ B £ £
2,375,898 55,1 34 89,794 2,520,826
24,453 . 3,693 4,265 32,411
-2,400,351° 58,827 94,059 2,553,237
312,637 37,101 79,910 429,648
63,014, 6,179 9,731 78,924
375,651 43,280 89,641 508,572
2,024,700 15,547 4,418 2,044,665
2,063,261 18,032 2,091,177

9,884

The land and buildings in the financial statements represents the school premises which is occupied

under a 125 year lease from the Worcestershire County Countil with effect from 31 May 2013.

Included in land éndi'buildings is leasehold land at valuation of £510,000 (2022: £510,000) which is not

depreciated.

Debtors

Due within one year

Trade debtors

Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

2023 - 2022
£ £
793 -
. 393 5733 -
23,374 58,734
24,560 64,467
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16.

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income

Deferred income at 1 September 2022
Resources deferred during the year
Amounts released from previous periods

2023

2022

£ £
1,547 11,919
33,835 33,343
23,737 37,195
59,119 82,457
2023 2022
£ £
18,972 20,574
21,063 - 18,972

(18,972) (20,574)
21,063 18,972

Deferred income relates to Universal Infant ‘Free School Meals grant mcome trip contributions and

nursery fee income recelved in advance.
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17.

Statement of funds

Balance at 1 ) Balance at
September ' Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2022 Income Expenditure in/out {Losses) 2023
£ £ £ £ £
" Unrestricted
funds -
General Funds - L
all funds- - . 7 14,274 - . - 10,578 - (3,782) - 21,070
Restricted
general funds
Academy - . '
Restricted - 18,097 1,050,406 (1,065,549) - - 2,954
“Nursery ’ - - 155,621 (159,403) 3,782 - -
Pension reserve - - (185,000) - (10,000) .- 147,000 (48,000)
- (166,903) 1,206,027 (1 ,234,952) . 3,782 147,000 " (45,046)
Restricted fixed . . - N
asset funds '
Restricted Fixed
Asset Fund - all : . :
funds: - 2,091,176 - - (78,924) 32,411 - 2,044,663
Devolved . . . S .
Formula Capital +1,437 - ‘5,924 - (3,836) - 3,525
Local Authority 16,359 L - - -(15,265) - 1,094
Additional capital . . :
funding - 13,310 . - (13,310) - - -
2,108,972 - 19,234 (78,924) - - 2,049,282
Total Restricted ' ‘ :
funds ' 1,_942,069. 1,225,261 (1,313,876) 3,782 147,000 2,004,236
Total funds: © 1,956,343 1,235,839 (1,31_3,876) - 147,000 2,025,306
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17.

Statement of funds (continued)

The specific purp‘oses for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

* GAG Fund - This fund represents grants received for the Academy's operational activities and
development.
Pupil Premium - Funding from the ESFA to support disadvantaged pupils of all ab|I|t|es to perform
and close the gap between them and their peers.
UIFSM - Grant income received to cover the provision of school meals for eligible children.
PE & Sports.Grant - funding towards the provision of physical education.
Rates Relief - Government funding towards rates costs incurred.
Employment Alléwance - Government funding towards national insurance contributions.
Local Authority Early Years - Grants received from the Local Authority to contrlbute towards the
academy's early years provision.
Catering, lettings, trip income - funds raised from the provision of the aforementloned activities.
Supply Reimbursement - monies received from the insurance provider for staff absence.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy was not subject to a I|m|t on the
amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2023. :
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17.

Statement of funds {continued)

Compafative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Balance at .. o N Balance at
1 September .. .. Transfers Gains/ 31 August -
e 2021 “Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2022
i £ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted ‘ : ’
funds
General Funds - :
all funds . 12,732 271,542 - - - 14,274
Restricted
general funds
Academy- - '

_ Restricted 36,216 1,055,001 (1,073,120) : - - 18,097
Nursery ‘ - 72,848 (72,848) - - -
Pension reserve : «(753,000) .- (91,000) - 659,000 (185,000)

~(716,784) ~ 1,127,849  (1,236,968) - 659,000 (166,903)
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Restricted Fixed !
Asset Fund - all :
funds o 1,989,713 . Do -~ (75943) 177,408 - 2091,178
Devolved . . .
Formula Capital 12,724 . 5856 : - (17,144) - 1,436
Local Authority 176,623 L - - (160,264) - 16,359
2,179,060 - 5856 (75943) - - 2,108,973
Total Restricted
funds 1,462,276 1,133,705  (1,312,911) - 659,000 1,942,070
Total funds 1,475,008 1,135,247  (1,312,911) ' - 659,000 1,956,344
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~ Total

Analysis of net assets between funds
Analysis of net assets between funds - current year
. Restricted
Unrestricted . Restricted- fixed asset Total -
funds funds funds -funds
2023 2023 2023 . 2023
£ £ £ £
Tavngibl'e fixed assets - ) <. - 2,044,663 2,044,663
Current assets : . 21,070 62,073 4,619 87,762
Creditors due within.one year - (59,119) - (59,119)
Provisions for liabilities and-charges - (48,000) - (48,000)
Difference : - - - -
- Total ' ‘ 21,070 (45,046) © 2,049,282 2,025,306
Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year
: . Restricted -
Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds - funds . funds
2022 2022 2022 2022
£ £ £ £
Tangibie fixed assets o ' . - - 2,091,177 2,091,177
Current assets 14,274 100,553 17,796 © 132,623
. Creditors due within one year - (82,457) - - (82,457)
* Provisions for liabilities and charges - (185,000) - (185,000)
14,274 (166,904) 2,108,973 1,956; 343
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19.

20.

21.

Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities

2023 2022
£ £
Net expenditure for the yedr (as per Statéement of Financial Activities)’ : (78,037) (177,665)
Adjustments for: : . .
Depreciation d L 78,924 75,943
Capital grants from DfE*arid other capital-income 19,234 37,199
Decrease in debtors.#. "% Seroed S 39,908 225,598
Decrease in creditors 7.7 S (23,338) (10,887)
FRS102 Adjustments.” -+ o ‘ 10,000 91,000
Net cash provided by,-="6perating.va'ctivities 46,691 241,188
Cash flows from investing activities
2023 2022
) . ‘ . £ £
Purchase of tangible fixed'assets =~ = -~ : . (32,411) = (177,408)
Capital grants from DfE Group . ‘ (19,234) (37,199)
Net cash used in investing activities {51,645) (214,607)
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
o S - 2023 2022
' : : £ £
Cash in hand and at’bank” Tl : ' 63,202 68,156
Total cash and cash equivalents : ' ' 63,202 68,156
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22.

23.

N

Analysis of changes in net debt

At1 :
: : - September At 31
\ 2022 Cash flows -August 2023
- ' ) £ > £
‘Cash at bank and in hand A ' ’ 68,156 - (4,954) 63,202 .

A . 68,156 . (4,954) 63,202

Pension commitments

The Academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Worcestershire County Council. Both are multi-
employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2019.

Contrlbutlons amounting to £17, 985 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022 £16,932)
and are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers Pensron Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory,: deﬁned benef’ t scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014, Membershlp is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment. '

The TPS is an.unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pensron
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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23.

Pension commitments (continued)
Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service.Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury:every 4:years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme.valuatioris. are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,

design of benefits -and many.other factors.: The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at
31 March 2016. The.valuation:-report:was. published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019.

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are: ,

. employer. contnbutlon rates:'set-at:23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy)
. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefi its) for

service to the effective date of £218;100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a -
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million
. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is 'used to determine the notional mvestment return. The current
' SCAPE rate is 2.4%:above the rate:of CPI, assumed real rate of return-is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess: of: earnings." The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024.
The emp'lvoyer’é pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £100,351 (2022 - £95,524).

A copy of theA valuation report and. supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website

* (https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS:102,:the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The .
Academy has accounted. forits. contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.
The Academy.has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded .defined benefit- pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds, The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £87,000 (2022 -
£78,000), of which - employer's contributions totalled £69,000 (2022 - £62,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £18,000 (2022 - £16,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 22 per
cent for employers and 5.5 to 12.5 per cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of an academy trust.closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be:
met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July
2022, the Department for Education reaffirmed its commltment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary
minute published on GOV UK.
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23.

Pension commitments (continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions

Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation -

o Discount rate for scheme liabilities

Inflation assumption (CPI)

2023
%
4.3
2.9
5.3

2.8

2022
%

4.3
2.9
4.3
2.8

The current mortality assumptions include sufﬂment aIIowance for future |mprovements in mortaluty rates.

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

.

Retiring today
Males

Females

Retiring in 20 years
Males

Females

Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate +0.1%
Mortality assumption - 1'year increase
CPl rate +0.1% '

2022

2023
- Years Years
21.5 22.7
- 23.8 25.1
22.8 24.4
25.6 27.1
2023 2022
£000 £000
- {16,000) (21,000)
17,000 17,000
16,000 21,000
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23.

Pension commitments (continued)

Share of scheme assets

The Academy's share of the assets in the scheme was:

At 31 At 31 August

August 2023 2022
£ £
Equities 583,000 512,000
Corporate bonds 18,000 19,000
Property 65,000 58,000
Cash and other liquid assets . 7,000 13,000
Other 122,000 96,000
,Totél market value of assets 795,000 698,000
The actual return on scheme assets was £16,000 (2022 - £-15,000).
The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:
<2023 2022
£ £
Current service cost (72,000) (141,000)
“Interest income 32,000 12,000
Interest cost : (38,000) (11,000)
Administrative expenses (1,000) (1,000)
Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities (79,000) (141,000)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligaﬁons were as follows:
) | 2023 2022
- £ £
At 1 September ’ 883,000 1,405,000
Current service cost 72,000 141,000
Interest cost 38,000 23,000
Employee contributions 18,000 16,000
Actuarial gains (164,000) (687,000)
Benefits paid (4,000) (15,000)
At 31 August 843,000 883,000
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23.

- 24,

25,

26.

Pension commitments (continuéd)

Changes in the fair value of the:Aca‘demy's share of scheme assets were as follows:

2023 2022

, £ £

At 1 September - " ’ \ . 698,000 652,000
Interestincome . - ‘ - 32,000 - 12,000
Actuarial losses o o , (17,000) (28,000)
Employer contributions e ‘ 69,000 . 62,000
Employee contributions . . - _ 18,000 . 16,000
Benefits/transfers paid . ' , : (4,00@)) " (15,000)
Administration expenses Coe s . (1,000) (1,000)
At 31 August ' : . - o 795,000 698,000

Operating lease commitments

At 31 Augu'st 2023 the Academy had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases as follows:

‘ : 2023 2022

T ' £ £

Not later than 1 year - 2,218 2,145
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years _ : 1,472 1,472
3,690 . 3,617

’

" Members' liability

“~Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted

before he/she ceases to be a member:

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the ,
trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made
on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the Academy's financial
regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.
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- 27.

Post balance sheet events

On 1 Decenﬁber 2023, Honeybéurne Eirst School will transfer into The Black Pear Trust (UID: 4936). T'Ae
trade and assets of the school will transfer over as a going concern and the financial statements have
been prepared to reflect this. Honeybourne First School Academy .(Company number: 08496781) will be

dissolved in the 12 months following the signing of the financial statements.

v
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